## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 89,936

# NORMAN PARKER,

Appellant,

v.

#### STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

## ON APPEAL FROM THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT, IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

#### INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Billy H. Nolas Fla. Bar No. 806821 Julie D. Naylor Fla. Bar No. 794351 437 Chestnut Street Suite 501 Philadelphia, PA 19106 (215) 451-6500

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

# **REQUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMENT**

Appellant respectfully requests that the Court allow oral argument in this capital appeal.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

REQU	EST FO	OR ORA	AL ARGUMENT i
TABL	E OF C	ONTEN	NTSii
TABL	E OF A	UTHO	RITIES vii
STAT	EMENT	Г OF TI	HE CASE 1
INTRO	ODUCT	TION .	
ARGU	JMENT	• • • • • •	
(I)	AGGI PREM INDIV IN V AMEN	RAVA IEDITA /IDUAI /IOLAT NDMEN	WAS ALLOWED TO WEIGH A VAGUE AND INVALID TING CIRCUMSTANCE (COLD, CALCULATED, TED) DEPRIVING MR. PARKER OF HIS RIGHT TO AN LIZED AND RELIABLE CAPITAL SENTENCING PROCEEDING, TION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH ITS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AND ARTICLE 9 AND 17 OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION
(II) THE JURY'S AND TRIAL COURT'S CONSIDERATION OF TH CALCULATED, PREMEDITATED AGGRAVATING FACTOR VIOLA FEDERAL AND STATE CONSTITUTIONAL PROHIBITION AGAINST FACTO APPLICATION OF LAWS AND DEFENSE COUNSEL F INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE IN FAILING TO APPROPRIATELY LITH ISSUE			
	A.		istory of Section 921.141(5) and the Court Decisions teting It
	B.	Section	n 921.141(5)(i) Is Retrospective
	C.	Section	n 921.141(5)(i) Substantially Disadvantaged Mr. Parker
		1.	The Legislature Intended To Disadvantage Capital Defendants By Enacting A Law Creating A New Aggravating Factor
		2.	The Change Which Sec. 921.141(5)(i) Imposed On The Sentencing Statute In Effect At The Time Of The Offense Operates To The Disadvantage Of The Capital Defendant

	E.	
		Conclusion
(III)	(WHII HIS PROC AMEN	URY WEIGHED A VAGUE AND INVALID AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE LE UNDER SENTENCE OF IMPRISONMENT) DEPRIVING MR. PARKER OF RIGHT TO AN INDIVIDUALIZED AND RELIABLE SENTENCING EEDING, IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH NDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AND ARTICLE I, §§ 9 17 OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION
(IV)	EVIDI UNITI	TRIAL COURT FAILED TO MEANINGFULLY CONSIDER MITIGATING ENCE, IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH AND SIXTH AMENDMENTS TO THE ED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF FLORIDA CONSTITUTION
(V)	WERE JURY ON TH COUL EACH WASH LEGIT SENT AND I VIOLA RELIA EIGHT STAT	ARKER'S SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS E VIOLATED BY THE TRIAL COURT'S FAILURE TO INSTRUCT THE THAT THE COURT COULD IMPOSE CONSECUTIVE SENTENCES HE OFFENSES ON WHICH MR. PARKER WAS CONVICTED, WHICH D HAVE BEEN ORDERED TO BE SERVED CONSECUTIVELY TO OTHER AND TO MR. PARKER'S EARLIER FLORIDA AND HINGTON, D.C., CONVICTIONS, AND THAT THIS WAS A TIMATE, PROPER, AND LAWFUL THIRD ALTERNATIVE TO A ENCE OF DEATH OR LIFE IMPRISONMENT, THUS MISINFORMING MISLEADING THE JURY IN FAVOR OF VOTING FOR DEATH, AND ATING MR. PARKER'S RIGHTS TO AN INDIVIDUALIZED AND ABLE CAPITAL SENTENCING DETERMINATION UNDER THE SIXTH, TH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED ES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS HE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION
(VI)	AGGR MR. P RELIA EIGHT STATI OF TH	URY WEIGHED A VAGUE AND INVALID AUTOMATIC RAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE (FELONY MURDER), DEPRIVING PARKER OF HIS RIGHTS TO AN INDIVIDUALIZED AND ABLE SENTENCING PROCEEDING, IN VIOLATION OF THE TH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED ES CONSTITUTION, AND ARTICLE I, §§ 9 AND 17 HE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION

# TABLE OF AUTHORITIES<sup>1</sup>

<u>Atkins v. Attorney General</u> , 932 F.2d 1430 (11th Cir. 1991)
Barton v. State, 193 So.2d 618 (Fla. 2d DCA 1968) 37
<u>Beck v. Alabama</u> , 447 U.S. 633 (1980) 34, 35, 36
<u>Beltran-Lopez v. Florida</u> , 112 S.Ct. 3021 (1992)
<u>Blake v. State</u> , 156 So.2d 571 (Fla. 1963)
Boliek v. Delo, 912 F. Supp. 1199 (W.D. Mo. 1995) 5
Brown v. State, 565 So.2d 304 (Fla. 1990)
<u>Caldwell v. Mississippi</u> , 472 U.S. 320 (1985) 35, 36
<u>California v. Ramos</u> , 463 U.S. 992 (1983) 34, 35
<u>Campbell v. State</u> , 571 So.2d 415 (Fla. 1990) 29, 30, 31
<u>Clark v. Dugger</u> , 559 So.2d 192 (Fla. 1990)
<u>Claudio v. Scully</u> , 982 F.2d 798 (2d Cir. 1992)
<u>Clemons v. Mississippi</u> , 110 S.Ct. 1441 (1990)
<u>Combs v. State</u> , 403 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981) 21, 22, 23
<u>Cooper v. State</u> , 336 So.2d 1133 (Fla. 1976) 3
<u>Davis v. Florida</u> , 112 S.Ct. 3021 (1992)
<u>Delap v. Dugger</u> , 513 So.2d 659 (Fla. 1987) 3, 4, 7
<u>Dobbert v. Florida</u> , 432 U.S. 282, 97 S.Ct. 2290 (1977) 20, 22
Downs v. Dugger, 514 So.2d 1069 (Fla. 1987)
Eddings v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104 (1982) 28, 29

1

Espinosa v. Florida, 112 S.Ct. 2926, 120 L.Ed.2d 854 (1992) 1, passim
<u>Ferguson v. State</u> , 417 So.2d 613 (Fla. 1982)
<u>Floyd v. State</u> , 497 So.2d 1211 (Fla. 1986)
<u>Garcia v. State</u> , 492 So.2d 360 (Fla. 1986)
<u>Gaskin v. Florida</u> , 112 S.Ct. 3022 (1992)
<u>Godfrey v. Georgia</u> , 446 U.S. 420 (1980) 3, passim
Hall v. State, 541 So.2d 1125 (Fla. 1989)
Harmon v. State, 527 So.2d 182 (Fla. 1988) 17
<u>Harrison v. Jones</u> , 880 F.2d 1279 (11th Cir. 1989)
Henry v. State, 586 So.2d 1033 (Fla. 1991) 3
<u>Henry v. Florida</u> , 112 S.Ct. 3021 (1992)9
<u>Hill v. State</u> , 133 So.2d 68 (Fla. 1961) 37
<u>Hitchcock v. Florida</u> , 112 S.Ct. 3020 (1992)9
<u>Hitchcock v. Dugger</u> , 481 U.S. 393, 107 S.Ct. 1821 (1987)
<u>Hitchcock v. State</u> , 413 So.2d 714 (Fla. 1982) 25
<u>Hodges v. Florida</u> , No. 92-5228, 1992 U.S. LEXIS 4950 (Oct. 5, 1992)9
<u>Huynh v. King</u> , 95 F.3d 1052 (11th Cir. 1996) 5
<u>Jackson v. State</u> , 648 So.2d 85 (Fla. 1994) 1, passim
James v. State, 615 So.2d 668, 669 (Fla. 1993) 2
<u>Kearse v. State</u> , 662 So.2d 677 (Fla. 1995) 6, 13
Larry v. State, 104 So.2d 352 (Fla. 1958)
Lewis v. State, 398 So.2d 432 (Fla. 1981) 19, 20

Lightbourne v. State, 438 So.2d 380 (Fla. 1983) 37
Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586 (1978) 29
Lowenfield v. Phelps, 108 S.Ct. 546 (1988) 38, 39, 40
Lucas v. State, 417 So.2d 250 (Fla. 1982)
Lyons v. McCotter, 770 F.2d 529 (5th Cir. 1985)
<u>Magill v. State</u> , 386 So.2d 1188 (Fla. 1980)
<u>Magwood v. Smith</u> , 791 F.2d 1438 (11th Cir. 1986)
<u>Matire v. Wainwright</u> , 811 F.2d 1430 (11th Cir. 1987)5
<u>Maynard v. Cartwright</u> , 486 U.S. 356 (1988) 10, 11, 13
<u>McCray v. State</u> , 416 So.2d 804 (Fla. 1982)
<u>Mendyk v. State</u> , 545 So.2d 846 (Fla. 1989)
<u>Menendez v. State</u> , 368 So.2d 1278 (Fla. 1979) 19, 20, 22
<u>Miller v. Florida</u> , 107 S.Ct. 2446 (1987) 19, passim
Mitchell v. State, 527 So.2d 179 (Fla. 1988) 15
Moreland v. State, 582 So.2d 618 (Fla. 1991)
<u>Murphy v. Puckett</u> , 893 F.2d 94 (5th Cir. 1990)5
<u>Nero v. Blackburn</u> , 597 F.2d 991 (5th Cir. 1979)
Occhicone v. State, 570 So.2d 902 (Fla. 1990)
<u>Orazio v. Dugger</u> , 876 F.2d 1508 (11th Cir. 1989)5
Parker v. Dugger, 111 S.Ct. 731 (1991)
Parker v. State, 611 So.2d 1224 (Fla. 1992)
Parker v. Dugger, 537 So.2d 969 (Fla. 1989) 1

Parker v. State, 456 So.2d 436 (Fla. 1984) 1, 6
Patterson v. State, 513 So.2d 1257 (Fla. 1987)
<u>Peek v. State</u> , 395 So.2d 492 (Fla.), <u>cert denied</u> , 451 U.S. 964, 101 S.Ct. 2036 (1981)
Ponticelli v. Florida, No. 91-8584, 1992 U.S. LEXIS 4948 (Oct. 5, 1992)
Porter v. Dugger, 559 So.2d 201 (Fla. 1990) 4
<u>Proffitt v. Florida</u> , 428 U.S. 242 (1976) 27, 30
<u>Randolph v. State</u> , 562 So.2d 331 (Fla. 1990)
<u>Richmond v. Lewis</u> , 113 S.Ct. 528 (1992) 16
<u>Riley v. State</u> , 366 So.2d 19 (Fla. 1978) 19, 20, 22
<u>Roberts v. State</u> , 568 So.2d 1255 (Fla. 1990)
<u>Rogers v. State</u> , 511 So.2d 526 (Fla. 1987) 15
Santos v. State, 591 So.2d 160 (Fla. 1991) 16
<u>Simmons v. South Carolina</u> , 114 S.Ct. 2187 (1994)
<u>Skipper v. South Carolina</u> , 476 U.S. 1 (1986)
Smalley v. State, 546 So.2d 720 (Fla. 1989) 3
Smith v. Dugger, 565 So.2d 1293 (Fla. 1990)
<u>Starr v. Lockhart</u> , 23 F.3d 1280 (8th Cir. 1994) 5
<u>Stringer v. Black</u> , 112 S.Ct. 1130 (1992) 10, passim
<u>Sumner v. Shuman</u> , 107 S.Ct. 2716 (1987)
<u>Thompson v. Dugger</u> , 515 So.2d 173 (Fla. 1987)
<u>Tison v. Arizona</u> , 107 S.Ct. 1676 (1987) 40

<u>Tomlin v. Myers</u> , 30 F.3d 1235 (9th Cir. 1994)
<u>Trotter v. State</u> , 576 So.2d 691 (Fla. 1991)
<u>Vaught v. State</u> , 410 So.2d 147 (Fla. 1982)
<u>Vela v. Estelle</u> , 708 F.2d 954 (5th Cir. 1983)
<u>Walton v. Arizona</u> , 110 S.Ct. 3047, 111 L.Ed.2d 511 (1990) 12, 16, 26
<u>Weaver v. Graham</u> , 450 U.S. 24, 101 S.Ct. 960 (1981)
<u>White v. State</u> , 403 So.2d 331 (Fla. 1981)
<u>Wilson v. Wainwright</u> , 474 So.2d 1163 (Fla. 1985)5
<u>Witt v. State</u> , 387 So.2d 922 (Fla. 1980)
<u>Woodson v. North Carolina</u> , 428 U.S. 280 (1976)
Zant v. Stephens, 462 U.S. 862 (1963) 3, 17, 30, 38

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal of a trial court's denial of relief in a proceeding under Rule 3.850, Fla. R. Crim. P. Appellant was tried for first degree murder before a jury in Dade County, Florida. After conviction, the jury voted for death and the trial court imposed a death sentence.

This Court affirmed on direct appeal. <u>Parker v. State</u>, 456 So.2d 436 (Fla. 1984). Appellant thereafter sought state habeas corpus relief, which this Court denied, <u>Parker v. Dugger</u>, 537 So.2d 969 (Fla. 1989), and Rule 3.850 relief, which was also denied. <u>Parker v. State</u>, 611 So.2d 1224 (Fla. 1992).

In light of the United States Supreme Court's decision in <u>Espinosa v. Florida</u>, 112 S.Ct. 2926 (1992), and this Court's subsequent decision in <u>Jackson v. State</u>, 648 So.2d 85 (Fla. 1994), Appellant then urged that the trial court grant Rule 3.850 relief. These and other recent decisions, Appellant submitted, demonstrated that Appellant was correct in his constitutional challenges to the aggravation (and instructions thereon) used by the prosecution at capital sentencing. The trial court denied relief without a hearing. A timely notice of appeal was filed.

Appellant also moved for habeas corpus relief in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida. The District Court held the federal proceedings in abeyance pending this Court's decision.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

The trial court instructed the jury on the "cold, calculated, premeditated" aggravating circumstance in bare terms, without any of the limiting constructions that this Court has found constitutionally necessary in order for the aggravator to be valid. Appellant's trial took place before this Court's decision in <u>Jackson v. State</u> and the United States Supreme Court's decision in <u>Espinosa</u> <u>v. Florida</u>.

This Court has now condemned the same vague and overbroad "cold, calculated, premeditated" instruction that was provided to this jury, finding that it infects the sentencing proceedings with constitutional error. Jackson v. State, 648 So.2d 85 (Fla. 1994). Where, as here, mitigating evidence is presented to the jury, the error should not be found harmless. Finally, this Court has held that trial counsel must object to the improper instruction and that if trial counsel does not, the claim will be deemed "procedurally barred." Jackson, 648 So.2d at 87-88; James v. State, 615 So.2d 668, 669 n.3 (Fla. 1993).

This Court's objection requirement, of necessity, is grounded on the view that defense lawyers had a legitimate legal basis for making the objection before <u>Espinosa</u> and <u>Jackson</u>. If the defense lawyer did not have a legal basis for making an objection, then it is a violation of due process to apply a procedural bar. Due process does not countenance a trap for the unwary which holds that a lawyer must object, even if there is no legal basis, and that if the lawyer does not, the claim will be barred when, later, there is a legal basis. This Court expressly rejected such a view in numerous cases after the United States Supreme Court's decision in <u>Hitchcock v. Dugger</u>, 481 U.S. 393 (1987). <u>See Hall v. State</u>, 541 So.2d 1125, 1126 (Fla. 1989) ("[A]s we have stated on several occasions, <u>Hitchcock</u> is a significant change in law, permitting defendants to raise a claim under that case in a

postconviction proceeding."); <u>Thompson v. Dugger</u>, 515 So.2d 173 (Fla. 1987) (same); <u>Delap v.</u> <u>Dugger</u>, 513 So.2d 659 (Fla. 1987) (trial court objection unnecessary for post-conviction review of a claim grounded on the recent decision in <u>Hitchcock</u>); <u>Downs v. Dugger</u>, 514 So.2d 1069 (Fla. 1987) (same).<sup>2</sup>

On the other hand, there is also no question that Espinosa and Jackson overruled a formidable body of precedent from this Court upholding Florida's standard jury instructions on aggravation, holding that constitutional vagueness/overbreadth analysis did not apply in Florida, and holding that the post-jury judge-sentencing proceeding cures aggravation jury instruction error. See Smalley v. State, 546 So.2d 720, 722 (Fla. 1989). See also Cooper v. State, 336 So.2d 1133, 1140-41 (Fla. 1976) (ruling that there was no error in allowing the jury to rely on a challenged aggravator because "the trial judge read the jury the interpretation of that term which we gave in Dixon. No more was required."); Smalley v. State, 546 So.2d 720, 722 (Fla. 1989) (stating, "[T]here are substantial differences between Florida's capital sentencing scheme and Oklahoma's...," in rejecting a constitutional vagueness challenge to instructions on aggravation; Occhicone v. State, 570 So.2d 902, 906 (Fla. 1990) (ruling that federal constitutional cases regarding vagueness in jury instructions on aggravation "did not make Florida's penalty instructions unconstitutionally vague"); Brown v. State, 565 So.2d 304, 308 (Fla. 1990) ("We have previously found [federal vagueness analysis] inapposite to Florida's death penalty sentencing [hearing]"); Mendyk v. State, 545 So.2d 846, 849 n.3 and 850 (Fla. 1989) (ruling that "the standard jury instructions adequately cover the definitions of aggravation"); Smith v. Dugger, 565 So.2d 1293, 1295 n.3 and 1297 n.7 (Fla. 1990) (same); Trotter v. State, 576 So.2d 691, 694 (Fla. 1991) (same); Randolph v. State, 562 So.2d 331, 338-39 (Fla. 1990) (affirming trial court's finding on aggravation and finding meritless the challenge to jury instructions on aggravation under the "state and federal constitutions"); Vaught v. State, 410 So.2d 147, 151 (Fla. 1982) (trial court finding on "heinous, atrocious, cruel" affirmed because the offense was "cold and calculated" without analysis of jury instruction error); Henry v. State, 586 So.2d 1033, 1038 (Fla. 1991) (holding that the law is "adequately set out in the standard jury instructions"); Roberts v. State, 568 So.2d 1255, 1258 (Fla. 1990) (federal vagueness standard "is not applicable under Florida's death sentencing procedure."); Porter v. Dugger, 559 So.2d 201, 203 (Fla. 1990) (federal vagueness standard "does not affect Florida's death sentencing procedures."); Clark v. Dugger, 559 So.2d 192, 194 (Fla. 1990) ("We have held that Maynard does not affect Florida's death sentencing procedures").

To be sure, this Court's cases informed defense lawyers that vagueness/overbreadth challenges to jury instructions on the "cold, calculated, premeditated" aggravator <u>did not present a</u>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>The view that there was a legal basis for defense counsel to make a trial court objection to improper, vague instructions on the "cold, calculated, premeditated" aggravator is supported by the issuance of <u>Godfrey v. Georgia</u> in 1980, <u>Zant v. Stephens</u> in 1982, and opinions from this Court limiting the scope of the aggravator.

If defense counsel at trial did not have a legal basis for a good faith objection -- for example, because precedent would not support an objection to the instruction as erroneous -- then this Court does not apply a procedural bar. <u>Hall</u>; <u>Thompson</u>; <u>Delap</u>; <u>Downs</u>. Indeed, the Court <u>cannot</u> apply a procedural bar in such cases -- to do so would be to require trial lawyers to make bad faith objections, and would penalize the clients of lawyers who sought to follow the law in good faith when deciding whether to object.

If defense counsel did have a legal basis to make an objection to an instruction and to litigate the constitutional issue, and failed to do so, Sixth Amendment law holds that counsel's assistance is ineffective when the instruction at issue is erroneous.<sup>3</sup> The same holds true for appellate counsel --

The <u>Espinosa</u> court expressly rejected the "State Supreme Court's reasoning . . . [that] there was no need to instruct the jury with the specificity our cases have required where the jury was the final sentencing authority, because, in the Florida scheme, the jury is not 'the sentencer' for Eighth Amendment purposes." <u>Espinosa</u>, 112 S.Ct. at 2928. The <u>Espinosa</u> court held: "[I]f a weighing State decides to place capital-sentencing authority in two actors rather than one, neither actor must be permitted to weigh invalid aggravating circumstances." <u>Espinosa</u>, 112 S.Ct. 2929.

The law <u>now</u> recognizes that the State of Florida had failed to constitutionally apply <u>Godfrey</u> <u>v. Georgia</u>, 446 U.S. 420 (1980), and its progeny to aggravation in its capital sentencing scheme. This Court also so held in <u>Jackson v. State</u>. As <u>Jackson</u> and <u>Espinosa</u> demonstrate, the view that constitutional vagueness/overbreadth law "does not affect Florida's death sentencing procedures," <u>Clark v. Dugger</u>, 559 So.2d 192, 194 (Fla. 1990), has now been expressly rejected.

<sup>3</sup><u>Starr v. Lockhart</u>, 23 F.3d 1280, 1286-87 (8th Cir. 1994) (counsel's failure to raise objection to error at capital sentencing constituted ineffective assistance of counsel); <u>Nero v. Blackburn</u>, 597 F.2d 991, 994 (5th Cir. 1979) (counsel's failure to object and raise a point of law at trial constituted ineffective assistance); <u>Lyons v. McCotter</u>, 770 F.2d 529, 534 (5th Cir. 1985) (failure to raise objection to error constitutes ineffective assistance of counsel); <u>Vela v. Estelle</u>, 708 F.2d 954, 965-66

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