IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 89,936

NORMAN PARKER, JR.,

Appellant,

VS.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

AN APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA
CRIMINAL DIVISION

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

FARIBA N. KOMEILY

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0375934 Department of Legal Affairs Rivergate Plaza, Suite 950 444 Brickell Avenue Miami, Florida 33131

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

appellate counsel at this juncture are not permitted. <u>Francis v. Barten</u>, 581 So. 2d 583 (Fla. 1991); <u>Lambrix v. Singletary</u>, 641 So. 2d 847, 848 (Fla. 1994):

Although this present ineffective assistance of counsel claim is based on a different issue, Lambrix has already raised numerous claims alleging ineffective assistance of appellate counsel in a previous habeas petition. See Lambrix v. Dugger, 529 So. 2d 1110 (Fla. 1988). Because ineffective assistance of counsel claims have been considered and rejected in a previous petition, Lambrix is procedurally barred from raising such claims again in a subsequent habeas petition. [cite omitted].

It should additionally be noted that all allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel with respect to the CCP aggravator are also without merit in light of this Court's prior findings of lack of prejudice in the instant case. In the prior habeas corpus proceedings in the instant case, this Court held: "Moreover, in view of the five aggravating and no mitigating factors present here, we are satisfied that deletion of the cold, calculated, and premeditated factor would not affect the sentencing decision." Parker v. Dugger, 537 So. 2d at 972. In light of this prior holding of lack of prejudicial error, any alleged deficiency by trial or appellate counsel can not form the basis for further proceedings. State v. Salmon, 636 So. 2d 16, 17 (Fla. 1994).

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY FOUND THE CLAIM OF EX POST FACTO APPLICATION OF THE CCP AGGRAVATOR AND INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL IN FAILING TO LITIGATE THIS ISSUE TO BE SUCCESSIVE AND PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

The Appellant claims that the application of the CCP aggravator in the instant case violated the prohibition against the ex post facto application of laws. The trial court found: "this claim was raised in the defendant's first motion for post conviction relief and in his petition for writ of habeas corpus. It is untimely and successive and will not be reconsidered by the Court." (R. 346).

The trial court's ruling was proper. Pope v. State, supra; See also Card v. Dugger, 512 So. 2d 819, 830-1 (Fla. 1987)(successive petitions for the same relief are not cognizable and may be summarily denied where the circumstances of the alleged violation have not changed). This claim was raised in prior proceedings and this Court expressly found it to be procedurally barred for failure to preserve same at trial and pursue it on direct appeal; in the alternative, this Court also ruled the claim to be without merit and not prejudicial to the defendant:

Petitioner next claims that finding the murder cold, calculated, and premeditated based on a statutory amendment occurring after the murder took place violates the ex post facto clause. *Miller v. Florida*, 482 U.S. 423, 107 S.Ct. 2446, 96 L.Ed.2d

351 (1987). This issue is procedurally barred for failure to preserve at trial or raise it on direct appeal and is cognizable only under rule 3.850. The issue has also been previously decided contrary to petitioner's position. *Justus v. State*, 438 So. 2d 358 (Fla. 1983), cert. denied, 465 U.S. 1052, 104 S.Ct. 1332, 79 L.Ed.2d 726 (1994). Moreover, in view of the five aggravating and no mitigating factors present here, we are satisfied that deletion of the cold, calculating, and premeditated factor would not affect the sentencing decision.

<u>Parker v. Dugger</u>, supra, at 537 So. 2d 972. Nothing new has been alleged and this claim thus remains procedurally barred. The Appellant's claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel with respect to this issue are also untimely and procedurally barred, as seen in the argument section with respect to the first issue on appeal. See pp.14-15 herein, and <u>Pope</u>, <u>Lambrix</u>, <u>supra</u>.

DEFENDANT'S CLAIM OF INVALIDITY OF THE WHILE UNDER SENTENCE OF IMPRISONMENT AGGRAVATOR IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

The Appellant has argued that the trial court erred in finding and instructing the jury on the under sentence of imprisonment aggravator, because there was no evidence that defendant was serving a sentence at the time he committed the capital offense. The Court below ruled that, "[T]his argument was raised unsuccessfully by the defendant on his direct appeal. He cannot raise it again." (R. 347).

The trial court was correct. <u>Parker v. State</u> at 611 So. 2d 1226 ("We have repeatedly said that a motion under rule 3.850 cannot be used for a second appeal to consider issues that either were raised in the initial appeal or could have been raised in that appeal"); See also <u>Pope</u>, <u>Card</u>, supra (Summary denial of an untimely and successive motion for post conviction relief is proper.).

The State would note that, contrary to defendant's contention, the record clearly reflects that the prosecution entered into evidence a "Judgment and Sentence" which clearly reflects that defendant was convicted of first degree murder and sentenced to a term of imprisonment for the remainder of his natural life, in 1967. Record on direct appeal, at 409. More importantly, however, the sufficiency of proof of this aggravator was raised on direct appeal, in reliance upon the same evidence and case law cited by the Appellant herein. See

initial brief of Appellant on direct appeal, (R. 235-37). This Court expressly rejected this argument and found sufficient proof of this aggravator in the instant case:

Defendant's argument that there was no evidence that he was under a sentence of imprisonment at the time of the murder is meritless. The record shows that on August 10, 1967, defendant was adjudged guilty of first-degree murder and sentenced to life imprisonment. No evidence was introduced relative to a pardon or other legitimate termination of that incarceration nor did the defendant make any such argument.

<u>Parker v. State</u>, 456 So. 2d at 444. This claim was thus properly found to be procedurally barred. The allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel are likewise barred as successive and untimely, in accordance with the arguments set forth at pp. 14-15 herein, and <u>Pope</u>, <u>Lambrix</u>, <u>supra</u>.

DEFENDANT'S CLAIM OF FAILURE TO MEANINGFULLY CONSIDER MITIGATION IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

The Defendant argues that the sentencing judge erroneously found that there were no mitigating circumstances in the instant case. The court below found this claim to be procedurally barred: "This claim was unsuccessfully asserted by the defendant in his earlier motion for post conviction relief. He cannot raise it here." (R. 342). Indeed, this Court in affirming the denial of the first motion for post conviction relief expressly found this claim to be procedurally barred:

Parker raised thirteen claims in his rule 3.850 motion and seven in his supplement, some duplicating claims already made. We have repeatedly said that a motion under rule 3.850 cannot be used for a second appeal to consider issues that either were raised in the initial appeal or could have been raised in that appeal. Jones v. State, 446 So. 2d 1059, 1061-62 (Fla. 1984) (citing numerous cases). Most claims fall into this category. The procedurally barred claims are: . . . and 14) mitigating evidence was not considered fairly.

<u>Parker v. State</u>, 611 so. 2d at 1226. The above finding of procedural bar remains the law of the case at this juncture, and the Appellant has not cited any new grounds, or retroactive decisions to the contrary, since the prior determination. See <u>Pope</u>, <u>Card</u>, <u>supra</u>. With respect to the allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel, the State again relies upon its previous argument that same are procedurally barred as being successive and untimely, as set forth in pp. 14-15 herein, and <u>Pope</u>, <u>Lambrix</u>, <u>supra</u>.

DEFENDANT'S CLAIM THAT THE TRIAL COURT VIOLATED HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS BY FAILING TO INSTRUCT THE JURY THAT IT COULD IMPOSE CONSECUTIVE SENTENCES IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

The Appellant argues that his trial counsel requested⁶, but that the trial court erroneously failed to instruct the jury that she could sentence Mr. Parker to consecutive sentences for the capital murder and the underlying felonies herein, and that these sentences could have been ordered to be served consecutive to the two prior murder convictions. The trial court found this claim to be successive and untimely, as it had been raised both, "in [Parker's] appeal of the denial of his first 3.850 motion and in his petition for habeas corpus. These claims, including the claim of ineffective assistance of counsel in this point, are untimely made and are procedurally barred." (R. 347).

The trial court's ruling was proper. In his "Amendment" supplementing the petition for writ of habeas corpus, the Defendant claimed that the jury was erroneously not informed that the trial court, "could sentence Mr. Parker to consecutive sentences of imprisonment

The State would note that trial counsel requested that the jury be instructed that the Court could impose the sentences on the noncapital offenses concurrently or consecutively, during the guilt phase jury instruction conference. (Record on direct appeal, T. 2344). The Court in accordance with Fla.R.Crim.P. 3.390 (1981) declined but did advise the jurors of the minimum and maximum penalties with respect to all the noncapital offenses. (R. 151-2). There was no request to instruct the jury as to concurrent or consecutive sentencing at the penalty phase.

for the murder and the underlying felonies, and that these sentences could have been ordered to be served consecutively to the two previous convictions for which Mr. Parker was serving life sentences." (R. 310-311). This Court found this claim to be procedurally barred as it was, a) untimely raised; b) unpreserved at trial; and, c) not raised on direct appeal:

Petitioner's final claim is that the trial judge erred in not advising the jury that the sentences in the present case could be imposed consecutively to the sentences in the separate murders for which petitioner has been convicted. Petitioner attempts to raise this seventh issue by an untimely supplement to his first petition for habeas relief. Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.851 specifies that petitions for collateral relief under the circumstances present here must be filed within thirty days of the warrant's signing. Petitioner has presented no valid reason for this untimely filing. The supplementary petition is barred by the terms of rule 3.851. Moreover, even if it were not, it is procedurally barred by rule 3.850 for failure to preserve at trial or raise it on direct appeal.

Parker v. Dugger, 537 So. 2d at 973; (emphasis added); see also, Parker v. State, 611 So. 2d at 1226:

Parker raised thirteen claims in his rule 3.850 motion and seven in his supplement, some duplicating claims already made. We have repeatedly said that that motion under rule 3.850 cannot be used for a second appeal to consider issues that either were raised in the initial appeal or could have been raised in that appeal. Jones v. State, 446 So. 2d 1059, 1061-62 (Fla. 1984) (citing numerous cases). Most claims fall into this category. The procedurally barred claims are: . . . 7) the jury was not instructed that sentences could be served consecutively;

Thus, this claim remains procedurally barred. See <u>Pope</u>, <u>Card</u>, <u>supra</u>. Again, the Defendant's allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel with respect to this claim are

successive, untimely and thus procedurally barred as set forth in pp. 14-15 herein, and <u>Pope</u>, <u>Lambrix</u>, <u>supra</u>.

DEFENDANT'S CLAIM WITH RESPECT TO AN AUTOMATIC AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

The Appellant argues that the felony murder aggravating circumstance is unconstitutional. The trial court found this claim to be successive and procedurally barred as it was raised in prior post conviction proceedings:

The defendant complains that the jury was instructed to automatically find an aggravator, that the murder was committed during a felony, if they found him guilty of committing a felony murder. This argument was made by the defendant and rejected by the court in both defendant's prior post conviction claims and in his habeas.corpus proceeding. Further, the decision anticipated by the defendant on this issue is Tennessee v. Middlebrooks, 510 U.S. 124, 114 S.Ct. 651, 126 L.Ed.2d 555 (1993) was never issued since the U.S. Supreme Court dismissed the writ of Certiorari finding it was improvidentially granted.

(R. 347). The trial court's summary dismissal was proper and in accordance with <u>Pope</u>, <u>Card</u>, <u>supra</u>. This Court found this claim to be procedurally barred and, in the alternative, without merit, in both the prior habeas corpus proceeding, and the appeal from denial of the first motion for post conviction relief:

Petitioner's sixth claim is that his death sentence is for felony murder and that use of the underlying felony as an aggravating factor violates the eighth and fourteenth amendments. This issue was not presented at trial and is procedurally barred. Moreover, it is cognizable only under rule 3.850. Finally, the claim has been previously decided contrary to petitioner's position. *Lowenfield v. Phelps*, 484 U.S. 231, 108 S.Ct. 546, 98 L.Ed.2d 568 (1988); *Bertolotti v. State*, 534 So. 2d 386, 387

n. 3 (Fla. 1988).

Parker v. Dugger, 537 So. 2d at 973; See also, Parker v. State, 611 So. 2d at 1226:

Parker raised thirteen claims in his rule 3.850 motion and seven in his supplement, some duplicating claims already made. We have repeatedly said that a motion under Rule 3.850 cannot be used for second appeal to consider issues that either were or could have been raised in that appeal. <u>Jones v. State</u>, 446 So. 2d 1059, 1061-62 (Fla. 1984) (citing numerous cases). Most claims fall into this category. The procedurally barred claims are: . . . 6) the felony murder aggravator fails to narrow the class of persons eligible for the death penalty.

The above findings are the law of the case, and no new evidence or retroactive authority has been cited to alter same. This claim thus remains procedurally barred. Finally, the claims of ineffective assistance of counsel are again procedurally barred as being successive and untimely, in accordance with the arguments set forth at pp.14-15 herein and <u>Pope</u>, <u>Lambrix</u>, <u>supra</u>.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, the State respectfully submits that the trial court's summary denial of the defendant's claims based upon procedural bars should be affirmed.